	Q106: It appears that some of the RFP Task Orders require detailed knowledge of the current JSC facilities and/or operational processes in order to accuracy develop and describe the TO technical approach. For example, TO-01 requires ESTA equipment quantities, test set up configurations, etc. to accurately define the maintenance and operations planning approach, yet this level of detail is not provided with the TO. Similarly, TO-08 requires travel, yet information upon which to base the travel frequency and level of participation is not part of the TO description. It appears that the incumbent, by currently performing this work, has unique insight into the work performance, creating an advantage.  Please review the TOs to ensure that sufficient detail is provided to enable a non-incumbent to accurately scope the work requested and thus help ensure a level competition.
	

	A106:  The Government has reviewed the RFP task orders and is adding data to the technical library for the final RFP where appropriate to ensure sufficient data is provided to allow Offerors to develop their proposals.   Specifically for TO-01, the technical library will be updated to include additional maintenance and operations manuals and photographs of facility hardware.  TO-08 will be updated to specify the frequency of travel required.  Additional data will be added to the technical library related to other task orders as appropriate.  Offerors should monitor the JETS website for updates.  

	Q107: Ref: Task Order 08, Paragraph 5.1.1   This Task Order states travel is required for educational and public outreach. However, the corresponding Statement of Work (SOW) section (SOW Section 2.7.2 - Education and Outreach) is not referenced in Task Order 08, Section 3.  

Question: Would the Government clarify if SOW Section 2.7.2 applies to Task Order 08?


	A107: The requirement for travel associated with education and public outreach has been removed from Task Order #8 in the final RFP.  SOW Section 2.7.2 does not apply to this TO.   

	Q108: J-11 Award Fee Plan: Can modifications to the award fee plan be proposed? If so how?

	A108:  No, modifications may not be proposed. The current RFP does not include Alt II of provision 52.215-1, Instructions to Offerors-Competitive Acquisitions, which would have allowed Offerors to propose modifications to the award fee plan. 

	Q109: DRD 10 External Customer Plan: Would you please provide the list of non-NASA reimbursable customers that utilized JETS assets over the past 5 years including dollar values into the bidder’s library?

	A109: Over the past five years, most of the non-NASA reimbursable customers utilizing JSC Engineering or ARES Directorate assets were not identified as external customers under the Engineering and Science Contract. Through this RFP, NASA seeks to obtain creative solutions from offerors regarding potential customers and target markets for utilization of these assets on a non-interference  basis. 

	Q110: Lab Utilization: On the JETS tours, we got to see a lot of specialized equipment and laboratories – Can the Government provide a utilization factor for all the Labs – For example is ESTL utilized at full (design) capacity or is it at lower percentage of utilization (50% for example)?

	A110:  Usage data is extremely variable and dependent on the requirements of the various programs and projects supported by the laboratories.  Any usage data would be reflective of a given period in time and would not necessarily be useful in predicting future usage rates.  Further, capacity is dependent on the staffing of the facilities and is also variable, and would not necessarily be useful.

	Q111: Lab Usage Cost: Does the Government have a rate schedule associated with usage of the Laboratories that can be quoted to commercial entities that want to use the Lab during down time?

	A111:  There is no set rate schedule.  The facility cost is dependent on the unique customer requirements.

	Q112: SEC. H.17: The Draft RFP states Center Operations Support Services (COSS) contract. The current contract name is Facility Support Services (FSS) and we assume will be in transition in parallel with JETS. Is the COSS the name of the FSS follow-on contract?  Please clarify.

	A112:  FSS contract is the follow-on contract to the COSS contract.  The final RFP will be updated to include the FSS instead of COSS contract.  Clause H.17 requires ACAs with the current contractor and successors.

	Q113: SEC. L.21.2: Will NASA increase the page count considering that thorough DRD and plan responses (due with the proposal) could easily surpass the present 325 page count?

	A113:   The Government anticipates increasing the 325 page count for Volume I to 400 pages in the final RFP.

	Q114: Previous RFP responses accepted the OSHA 300A (abbreviated) form.  The use of the OSHA 300 form would require redacting of names and HIPPA related information, which is a large amount of data and could delay response submittal.  Does NASA require the OSHA 300 and all of its supportive documentation or will the OSHA 300A meet this requirement?  Will NASA accept redacted files in response to this “Past Performance” requirement?

	A114: Section L.21.4.C(b)(ii) requires “Records of the company's OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses.  These  records shall include, for each worksite, as a minimum, 1 copy of each year’s OSHA logs (Forms 300 and 300A) as required by Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 1904.5(d) including the applicable NAICS code, the number of employees at the worksite and the calculated OSHA recordable frequency rate.”  Both Form 300 and 300A are required. It is acceptable to provide Form 300 redacted to remove names and personal data.

	Q115: H.22, p. H-27: This clause seems to indicate that JSC manufacturing, fabrication, assembly, and metal finishing are provided at no cost to JETS. Is this correct? If not, please clarify NASA’s intent with regard to these JSC services.

	A115:  The JSC Engineering Directorate maintains a core manufacturing infrastructure providing on-site fabrication capabilities.  The Government intends to acquire the capabilities to operate and maintain this core manufacturing infrastructure through a separate procurement called the Engineering Fabrication Services (EFS) Contract.  There is no pre-solicitation synopsis yet issued on the EFS contract.  The Government intends that fabrication of hardware developed by or sustained by the JETS contractor should utilize the on-site fabrication capability to the maximum extent practicable (see clause H.22).  The costs of the on-site fabrication will not be accumulated on the JETS contract, but will be accumulated on the EFS contract.  The details of procedure enabling the fabrication of hardware developed or sustained under the JETS contract and the interface between the JETS contractor, the EFS contractor and NASA are under development and will be defined prior to JETS contract start.

	Q116: Attachment J-2, p. J-1-16: The SOW does not refer to the Problem Reporting and Corrective Action system, but there is a DRD JETS-SMA-06 for this. Should the SOW call it out as well?

	A116:  DRD JETS-SMA-06 Problem Reporting and Corrective Action will be implemented through TOs as required.  Therefore, it will not be called out in the SOW.  Task Order #7 implemented this DRD for a portion of the work.  The final RFP will incorporate DRD JETS-SMA-06 on additional Task Orders in Attachment L-3.  

	Q117: L.8, p. L-4: The DRFP specifies that tables, charts, graphics, and figures may use not smaller than 10 point Times New Roman (non-compressed) font. Since offerors will need to present some detailed information in graphics, such as organization charts, staffing matrices, and process flows, the 10-point font size will be restrictive for “call-outs” on these graphics. Would the Government consider permitting offerors to use a font size not smaller than 8-point for graphics of this nature? In addition, offerors may need to include representational or notional graphics that are not meant to be read in detail, such as computer screen mock-ups or form/report print-outs. Will NASA stipulate that these are exempt from the font size restriction as long as they are not used excessively?

	A117:  To ensure consistency between proposals, the final RFP will require that ALL font be no smaller than 12-point Times New Roman (non-compressed) with no exception for tables, charts, graphics and figures.  The Government is considering an exception allowing smaller font size for notional graphics that are not intended to be read or evaluated.  The final RFP will include an increase in page count for Volume I.  See answer to Question 113.  The increase in page count is being done partially to offset the change in font size.  

	Q118:External Customer Plan, DRD MGT 10, pg. 1, Paragraph B.2.i.b:
Reference Language: Provide a comprehensive checklist of all constraints and policies the customer must meet in order to operate in EA/KA facilities
Question: Can you provide source or reference documentation from which to find this information?

	A118:  The final RFP will be updated to request only a partial submittal of the External Customer Plan as part of an offeror’s proposal and a delivery of the complete plan 90 days after contract start.  The portions of the External Customer Plan dealing with constraints and policies the customer must meet in order to operate in EA/KA facilities will not be required as a part of the proposal.  Therefore this data is not necessary for proposal development and will not be provided at this time.  

Additionally, the final RFP will be updated to delete SOW Section 2.7.1 External Customers which is unnecessary as the development and implementation of the External Customer Plan is required in SOW Section 1.1.1.  

	Q119: L.21.3.2, TA2 (B), p. L-27: On page L-27, the DRFP states that Offerors should assume that JSC manufacturing in Building 9 or 10 is not available for use in execution of the RFP task orders. However, this information conflicts with Clause H.22, which requires utilization of JSC fabrication services to the maximum intent possible. Please clarify the Government’s intent in this regard.

	A119:  There is no conflict.  In proposing to and executing task orders under JETS, the Contractor will be expected to conform to Clause H.22 and utilize the on-site fabrication services to the extent possible.  Ultimately, the availability of on-site fabrication is determined by NASA.  For purpose of the RFP task orders, NASA has determined that the JSC fabrication services are not available.  Therefore it is not possible to utilize these services for the RFP task orders. See answer to Question 115.

	Q120: L.21.4.C, pp. L-34 – L-35: Are we correct in assuming that the Safety and Environmental Past Performance referenced in L.21.4.C is required only for the prime contractor? If not, this potentially represents a significant amount of data to be provided for each subcontractor and would easily consume a significant portion of the volume page limitations. If this data is required for subcontractors as well as the prime, please consider excluding the following data from page count: (1) copies of any and all environmental non-compliance responses, notices of violation, and citations; (2) OSHA citations; (3) list of insurance carriers; (4) calculations supporting workers’ compensation experience modifier; and (5) letter from the insurance carrier summarizing the offeror’s liability and lawsuit history for safety and health.

	A120:  The Safety and Environmental Past Performance referenced in L.21.4.C is required for the prime and major subcontractors.  The letters from insurance companies will be excluded from the page count limitations in the final RFP.  See answer to Question 55.

	Q121: P. L-35: L.21.4.C (b) requires submission of “records of the company’s OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses. These records shall include, for each worksite, as a minimum, 1 copy of each year’s OSHA logs (Forms 300 and 300A)…” Are we correct in assuming that offerors are only required to submit this data for the contracts for which Past Performance Questionnaires are submitted? Typically, this information is provided for the past three years. Please clarify if that is NASA’s intent in the DRFP.

	A121:   No, this data is required for all work performed on all contracts during the past three years.  L.21.4 states:   “For all work performed during the past three years, Offerors shall provide the following: …”

	Q122: Compensation Template (d) Personnel and Fringe Benefit Policies, p. L-9 TC(d)-10:

This template requires offerors to address Uncompensated Overtime. Will NASA clarify its view on uncompensated overtime similar to what we have seen in recent RFPs? For example, a recent NASA RFP included the following language: “In accordance with FAR Provision 52.237-10, Identification of Uncompensated Overtime, the Offeror shall identify any uncompensated overtime included in the direct labor rates and the contract management overhead pool. The Offeror’s policy on uncompensated overtime shall be provided in Attachment L-5a, Tab I, Fringe Policy Questionnaire. Offerors shall clearly describe the impact of uncompensated overtime on the direct labor rates included in the cost forms (Attachment L-5a, Tabs A and B) and shall quantify the impact of the use of uncompensated overtime on the direct labor rates (clearly identify the amount by which each labor category direct labor rate is reduced as a result of the Offeror’s uncompensated overtime policy). Offerors are reminded that use of uncompensated overtime is not encouraged. The proposed use of uncompensated overtime for professional employees that reduces direct labor rates may result in probable cost adjustments, lower cost confidence, and be considered a lack of cost realism in the Mission Suitability evaluation.”

	A122: The NASA RFP language quotation in the question is not from the JETS Draft RFP.   Offerors need to review the JETS “Total Compensation Plan” DRD (MGMT-09) in Attachment J-2 DRDs Part 1 (Amendment 1, posted on February 1, 2012).  This DRD addresses the JETS RFP guidance on uncompensated overtime.   The Total Compensation Plan DRD (MGMT-09)  requires that Offerors provide, visibility into their personnel policies and fringe benefits including uncompensated overtime.  The JETS RFP does allow Offerors to propose uncompensated overtime but does not include language to encourage them to do so.  All proposals will be evaluated in accordance with Section M of the JETS RFP.  An unreasonable amount of uncompensated overtime could result in a weakness.

	Q123: The DRFP requires all service contractors who meet certain criteria (e.g., total potential value >$500K or >10% of the prime’s total potential value) to submit a Total Compensation Plan (TCP). Are we correct in assuming that offerors may submit one integrated Total Compensation Plan (TCP) that describes the salaries and fringe benefits proposed for their team, including all team members and major subcontractors? If not, will NASA reconsider the page limitations for the Mission Suitability Volume? The nominal page count for a TCP is 15 pages. For a large team, submission of individual TCPs for each team member could potentially represent up to half of the Volume I page count.

	A123: Offerors may submit one TCP covering the prime team members and all subcontractors meeting the thresholds of NFS 1852.231-71(d), or submit a separate TCP for each prime team member and subcontractor or any combination thereof.   The TCP(s) should clearly distinguish the compensation information for each prime team member and major subcontractor. 

	Q124:  (1) RFP L.11(d), pg. L-7: Can the government clarify what major subcontractors with annual contract value greater than $5M but less than 10% of the prime contractor's total value must provide in terms of a total compensation plan (TCP)? Specifically, must such major subcontractors provide TCP information beyond what is required in the Cost/Price Proposal worksheet Templates in Volume III?  (2) We found the "and" conjunction just before "(2)" in L.11(d) somewhat ambiguous. (3) We note also that the Cost/Price Proposal worksheet Templates do not cover everything specified in L.11(a)-(c) and DRD JETS-MGMT-09. (4) If major subcontractors as described above should provide additional TCP information beyond the Volume III Templates, should that information be incorporated into Volume I (Part 1) of the prime contractor's proposal?


	A124: (1) The prime team members and all subcontractors meeting the threshold of NFS 1852.231-71(d) must be covered by the Total Compensation Plan(s) and must provide the data required by Attachment L-9 Total Compensation Templates (a) through (e).  If a subcontractor also meets the definition of a Major Subcontractors as defined in L.21.5 they must also submit the entire cost/price volume.  

The Government anticipates changing the definition of Major Subcontractor in L.21.5 to “any subcontractor providing an estimated annual contract value of $20 Million (M) or more”  in the final RFP.
(2) The provision in the DRFP is the exact provision stated in the NASA FAR 1852.231-71. The word “and” is not an error.

(3) The government concurs that the templates do not cover every detail listed in L.11. This is why a separate DRD is provided in the RFP.

(4) The TCP(s) in Volume I and the TCP pricing templates in Volume III should cover the subcontractor(s) meeting the threshold of NFS 1852.231-71(d). 


	Q125:  Attachment J-23  The name of the file posted indicates it is a “cover page” and page 2 indicates “none identified”. Request an updated list of Government Furnished Computer Software that is required to support SOW requirements like Paragraphs 2.2.5- Database Development, 2.2.6- Website Development, 2.3.2- Analytical Capability be provided.


	A125:  The final RFP will be updated to include a list of Government Furnished Computer Software in J-23.   



